
 
LEMOORE PLANNING COMMISSION 

Regular Meeting 
AGENDA 

Lemoore Council Chambers 
429 ‘C’ Street 

 
August 11, 2014  

7:00 p.m. 
 
 
1. Pledge of Allegiance and Roll Call  

2. Public Comments and Inquiries 
If you wish to comment on an item, which is not on the agenda, you may do so under "Public Comment.”  In order 
to allow time for all public comments, each individual’s comments are limited to five minutes.  When addressing the 
Commission, you are requested to come forward to the speaker's microphone, state your name and address, and 
then proceed with your presentation. 

3. Approval – Minutes – Regular Meeting July 28, 2014 

4. Public Hearing – Major Site Plan Review No. 2014-02 and Conditional Use Permit No. 2014-03 – 
Request to Construct a 28-Unit Senior Affordable Apartment Complex – Phase II of Existing 
Cinnamon Villas Apartments Located at 335 W. Cinnamon Drive 

5. Planning Director’s Report  

6. Commission’s Report and Request for Information  

7. Adjournment 

Tentative Future Items 
 
 
August 25th  
-Public Hearing –Report and Recommendation  – Zone Change and General Plan Amendment – 847 and 849 Champion Street    
 
Notice of ADA Compliance:  If you or anyone in your party needs reasonable accommodation to attend, 
or participate in, any City Council Meeting, please make arrangements by contacting City Hall at least 24 
hours prior to the meeting.  They can be reached by calling 924-6700, or by mail at 119 Fox Street, 
Lemoore, CA  93245. 
 

Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the Planning Commission regarding any item on this 
agenda will be made available for public inspection at the City Clerk’s Counter at City Hall located at 119 
Fox Street, Lemoore, CA during normal business hours.  In addition, most documents will be posted on 
the City’s website at www.lemoore.com. 

 
 

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING 
 

 I, Kristie Baley, Planning Commission Secretary, do hereby declare that the foregoing Agenda for the 
Lemoore Planning Commission Regular Meeting of Monday, August 11, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. was posted 
on the outside bulletin board located at City Hall, 119 Fox Street in accordance with applicable legal 
requirements.  Dated this 8th day of August 2014. 

                 //s//     
      Kristie Baley, Commission Secretary  



                                        
WELCOME TO YOUR LEMOORE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

 

 

Whether you are attending this meeting because of general interest, or because a particular item of special interest is to be 
reviewed, your presence is an important means of helping to insure an informed public and responsible City Government. 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
The Planning Commission has been established to advise the City Council in planning and zoning matters. 
 

REGULAR PLANNING COMMISSION MEETINGS 
Meetings are held at 7:30 p.m. on Second and Fourth Monday of each month.  Business requiring Commission action is listed on 
the Planning Commission Meeting Agenda (blue-colored).  An agenda is prepared for each Planning Commission Meeting.  In 
compliance with the State open meeting laws (Brown Act), only those items on the agenda may be acted upon by the Planning 
Commission.  
 

CONDUCT AT PUBLIC MEETINGS 
Your courtesy is requested to help our meeting run smoothly.  If you’ll be kind enough to follow these simple rules, we can make the 
best possible use of time.  Please silence all electronic devices.  Please refrain from public displays or outbursts such as unsolicited 
applause, comments, cheering, foul language, or obscenities.  Any disruptive activities that substantially interfere with the ability of 
the City to carry out its meeting or prevents/disrupts others from fully participating in the meeting will not be permitted and offenders 
will be requested to leave the meeting pursuant to Government Code § 54957.9. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS  
At a Planning Commission meeting, those who wish to be heard on matters on the agenda should indicate their desire to speak 
when the item is ready for discussion.  If you wish to comment on an item which is not on the agenda, you may do so under "Public 
Comments".  In order to allow time for all public comments, each individual’s comments are limited to five minutes.  Time shall not 
be shared/loaned from speaker to speaker.  If you wish to request time on an upcoming Planning Commission Agenda to present a 
particular item or matter to the Planning Commission, you may contact the Planning Commission Secretary at any time before 12:00 
noon on the Tuesday immediately preceding the Planning Commission meeting to so request.  If the matter is within the Planning 
Commissions jurisdiction, and the Planning Commission has not taken action or considered the item at a recent meeting, the 
Planning Director may place the item on the Agenda.  When addressing the Planning Commission, you are requested to come 
forward to the speaker's microphone, state your name and address, and then proceed with your presentation. 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION 
Resolution  

A Resolution is a formal written expression of a policy, opinion or desire of the Planning Commission.  It requires only one 
reading and becomes effective on adoption. 

 

Minute Order  
Actions of the Planning Commission recorded only in the Minutes taken in all cases where a formal Resolution is not needed 
or required.  

 

SUGGESTIONS, INQUIRIES OR COMPLAINTS 
While any citizen may speak directly to the Planning Commission concerning suggestions, inquiries or complaints, the Planning 
Director or Department Head responsible for the service or work concerned, can usually provide pertinent information or handle the 
matter without delay if a request is made directly to him or her.  If you are not sure which department to call, or whenever you feel 
the matter has not been properly handled, please contact the office of the Planning Director at 711 W. Cinnamon Drive, telephone  
924-6740, or email planningdept@lemoore.com.  



 1

           Item 3 
 

Minutes of the  
LEMOORE PLANNING COMMISSION 

July 28, 2014 
 
 

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER: 
 At 7:05 p.m. the meeting was called to order. 
 
ATTENDANCE: 

Chairman Garcia, Vice-Chairman Clement, Commissioners Dow, Monreal, 
Wynne; Planning Director Wlaschin, Project Manager Holwell, Commission 
Secretary Baley 
 

ARRIVED LATE:     
 City Planner Brandt 

 
ABSENT:  
 Commissioners Badasci, Marvin 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 

There was no comment. 
  

MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING JULY 14, 2014: 
It was moved by Commissioner Wynne and seconded by Commissioner  
Dow to approve the Minutes of the Planning Commission Regular Meeting of 
July 14, 2014. 
 
Ayes:  Dow, Monreal, Wynne, Clement, Garcia  
Absent:  Badasci, Marvin    

 
PLANNING DIRECTOR’S REPORT: 

Planning Director Wlaschin reported that the paving of Bush Street is     
scheduled to begin August 6th and is expected to be complete prior to August 
11th. 
 
Wlaschin reported that Level I of the Water Conservation Measure goes into 
effect August 1, 2014. 
 
Wlaschin reported that Well 12 at Cedar and Acacia is back on-line. 
 
Wlaschin explained how the water levels are monitored and the wells are 
maintained. 
 
Wlaschin informed the Commissioners of future agenda items. 
 

 
 
 



 2

PUBLIC HEARING – CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT – CEQA – CATEGORICALLY EXEMPT – 
DEREK WEISSER – FRAMEWORK RACING INC. – REVIEW AND CONSIDER ADOPTION OF 
RESOLUTION NO. 2014-02 – ESTABLISHING A BMX RACE TRACK SOUTH OF IDAHO      
AVENUE, APPROXIMATELY 900 FEET EAST OF HIGHWAY 41: 

 
   Applicant Derik Weisser presented the request and answered questions. 
 
   Chairman Garcia requested comment from the public. 
    
   There was no comment. 
 

It was moved by Commissioner Wynne and seconded by Commissioner Dow 
to approve Resolution 2104-02 – Approving Conditional Use Permit 2014-02 
to Allow a BMX Raceway Facility Located on the South Side of Idaho Avenue, 
Approximately 900 Feet East of Hwy 41. 
 
Ayes:  Wynne, Dow, Monreal, Clement, Garcia 
Absent:  Badasci, Marvin 
 

PUBLIC HEARING – CITY INITIATED PROJECT – CEQA – CATEGORICALLY EXEMPT –    
REVIEW AND CONSIDER ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2014-03 – MAKING A          
RECOMMENDATION TO THE CITY COUNCIL REGARDING AMENDING OF CITY OF 
LEMOORE ZONING CODE (Title 9); AN ORDINANCE MODIFYING CERTAIN SECTIONS OF 
ARTICLE D1: LANDSCAPING STANDARDS: 
 

City Planner Brandt presented each recommended ordinance text change to 
Commissioners.   
 
Commissioners unanimously agreed to discourage fescue for new          
construction to prohibit high water use. 
 
Commissioners were unanimously against recommended text changes to 9.5 
D1-2.D1, 9.5D1-2.D.2 and 9.5D1-2.F.3 

 
It was moved by Commissioner Monreal and seconded by Commissioner 
Wynne to approve Resolution 2104-03 – Recommending Approval of Zoning 
Ordinance Text Amendment No. 2104-01 to Modify Landscape Design 
Standards in the City of Lemoore and omitting the recommended changes to 
9.5D-2D1, 9.5D1-2D.2 and 9.5D1-2F.3. 
 
Ayes:  Monreal, Wynne, Dow, Clement, Garcia 
Absent:  Badasci, Marvin 
 . 
 

COMMISSIONERS REPORT AND REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION: 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 There were no reports or requests. 
 
 
 
 



 3

ADJOURNMENT: 
 At 8:18 p.m. the meeting adjourned. 
 

 
Approved the 11th day of August 2014. 
 
Full digital audio recording is available. 
 
 
 

              
        Jeff Garcia, Chairman 
Attest: 
 
 
 

       
Kristie Baley, Commission Secretary 
 



“In	God	We	Trust”	 Page	1	
 

Mayor 
William Siegel 
Mayor Pro Tem 

 Public Works/ 
Planning Services 

Department 
 

711 Cinnamon Drive 
Lemoore  CA  93245 
Phone(559)924-6740 
FAX(559)924-6708 

Lois Wynne 
Council Members 
Ray Madrigal 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 4 
To: Lemoore Planning Commission  

From: Michael Hernandez, Assistant Planner and Steve Brandt, City Planner 

Date: August 8, 2014  

Subject: Public Hearing to Consider Major Site Plan Review No. 2014-02 and 
CUP No. 2014-03: a Request by Pacific West Communities, Inc. to 
Construct a 28-Unit  Senior Affordable Apartment Complex.  The Project 
is the Second Phase of the Existing Cinnamon Villas Apartments.   
 

 

 
Recommended Action 

City staff recommends that the Planning Commission conduct a public hearing to take 
testimony regarding Major Site Plan Review No. 2014-02 and CUP No. 2014-03.  
Following the Public Hearing staff recommends that the Planning Commission consider 
the testimony given and approve the applicant’s proposal with conditions. 
 
Proposal 

The applicant, Pacific West Communities, Inc. requests a Major Site Plan Review and 
Conditional Use Permit to construct Phase II, the last phase of the Cinnamon Villas 
Project, on the proposed 1.86 acre lot, east of the existing Phase I site.  
 
Project Description 

Phase II of the project will contain 28 senior affordable living apartments, a laundry 
room building, an outdoor barbeque area, a fenced dog park area, and covered parking.  
The site will consist of 5 separate building structures: 3 Type C buildings that provide 
eight 1-bedroom units, 1 Type B building that provides four 2-bedroom units, and the 
laundry building.  
 
Parking for the villas will include 31 parking spaces.  All but three of the spaces will be 
covered. Three of the spaces will be van accessible parking spaces.  
 



“In	God	We	Trust”	 Page	2	
 

The project proposes to include landscaping, outdoor lighting, the existing 6’ wood 
fence dividing the property to the east, and ADA accessible trash enclosure, bench 
areas, bike racks and one identification sign.   
 
Amenities include a fenced dog park and an ADA accessible picnic table and barbecue 
area.  Residents of Phase II will also be able to enjoy the pool, recreation room, and 
other amenities and services offered at Phase I of The Cinnamon Villas. 
 
Applicant    Pacific West Communities, Inc., Tim Sciacqua, Consultant 

Location    Southeast corner of Cinnamon Drive and Follett Street  

Existing Land Use  Vacant 

APN    021-500-007 

Site Size    1.86 Acres 

Zoning   RLMD 

General Plan  Low-Medium Density Residential 

Adjacent Land Use, Zone and General Plan Designation  

Direction Current Use Zone  General Plan 

North  Single-Family Homes  RLD Low Density Residential 

South  Single-Family Homes RLMD Low-Medium Density Residential

East Single-Family Homes  RLMD Low-Medium Density Residential

West 
Cinnamon Villas Phase I 
Senior Apartments 

RMD Medium Density Residential  

 
History 
 
The applicant, Pacific West Communities Inc., also developed the first phase of the 
project.  The Planning Commission passed and adopted Resolution No. 2009-05 on 
July 13, 2009, approving the first phase of Cinnamon Villas Senior Apartments, and with 
the anticipation of the second phase to be constructed at a later date.  The first phase 
has proven to be a successful and a thriving affordable senior housing complex. 
 
 
 
 
 



“In	God	We	Trust”	 Page	3	
 

Zoning/General Plan 
 
The project site is currently zoned as Low-Medium Density Residential. This Zone 
requires a minimum site area of 3,000 square feet for every dwelling unit.  At 1.86 acres 
(or 81,021 square feet), the site is normally allowed 27 units.  However, because the 
dwelling units will be committed to senior housing, the Zoning Ordinance provides a 
density bonus of up to 20%, meaning that the site would be allowed up to 32 units.  The 
proposed site plan shows 28 units, which is less than the acceptable maximum after the 
density bonus is applied. 
 
Access and Traffic 
 
Access to the property will be from two locations, one on Follett Street and one on 
Cinnamon Drive.  The Follett Street access is aligned with the existing drive access 
across the street on the first phase of Cinnamon Villas. Staff supports having two 
access points because it will allow for better circulation in and out of the property for 
residents, visitors, fire emergency vehicles, and refuse vehicles. 
 
Grading and Site Design 
 
The site meets the City’s site design standards for height, setbacks, and parking.  The 
plans show that the project will have similar architecture, building colors, and 
landscaping as the existing Phase I Project. 
 
The site’s existing grade is currently lower than the adjacent streets.  Therefore, the 
developer will likely bring in dirt to raise the site or construct a block retaining wall.  This 
will reduce the grade difference between the site and the adjacent properties to the 
east. 
 
Staff recommends that the existing wood fence along the east property line be replaced 
with a vinyl fence similar to the fence at the Phase I site.  Alternatively, if the Planning 
Commission sees a need for greater separation between the project and adjacent 
homes, the Commission could change the Staff’s recommendation and require that a 
block wall be installed. 
 
Environmental Assessment  
 
Pursuant to California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines, Section 15303 
New Construction, it has been determined that this project is categorically exempt from 
additional CEQA processes. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



“In	God	We	Trust”	 Page	4	
 

Recommended Approval Findings  
 
A conditional use permit shall be granted only when the Planning Commission 
determines that the proposed use or activity complies with all of the following findings: 
 
1.  The proposed use is consistent with the General Plan, any applicable specific plans, 
and all applicable provisions of this title.  The project is within the allowed density. 
 
2.  The establishment, maintenance, or operation of the use applied for will not, under 
the circumstances of the particular case (location, size, design, and operating 
characteristics), be detrimental to the health, safety, peace, morals, comfort, or general 
welfare of persons residing or working in the neighborhood of such use or to the general 
welfare of the city.  The use is compatible with the zone and existing uses in the vicinity. 
 
3.  The site of the proposed use is physically suitable for the type, density, and intensity 
of the use and related structures being proposed. Given the proposed plans, access to 
and from the site is suitable for the intensity of traffic.  Follett Street and Cinnamon Drive 
are classified as collector streets under the City of Lemoore’s General Plan, and will 
provide connection between the proposed site for higher density apartments, downtown, 
and other parts of the city. 
 
4.  The project will not be contrary to the specific intent clauses, development 
regulations, or performance standards established for the zoning district in which it is 
located. The proposed use and related structures are compatible with other land uses, 
transportation, and service facilities in the vicinity.  Due to the existing first phase of  
Cinnamon Villas, residents of the second phase will have access to the adjacent phase, 
with aligned accesses to both housing complexes.  Residents will be eligible for use of 
the amenities provided by the existing first phase of the existing Cinnamon Villas.  
 
 
Major Site Plan Review 

 

The following standards from the City Zoning Ordinance shall be met: 

 

9-2B-15: MAJOR SITE PLAN AND ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW: 

Review Required: A major site plan and architectural review is required for new 
multi-family residential developments (e.g., apartments, condominiums, townhomes) 

 

9-5A-2: HEIGHT LIMITS MEASUREMENT AND EXCEPTIONS: 

The maximum height shall not exceed 45ft.  The proposed height of the building 
structure is 20ft. 10in.  

 



“In	God	We	Trust”	 Page	5	
 

9-5A-3: SETBACK DETERMINATION AND REQUIREMENTS: 

The setback minimum for the proposed site is 10ft.  The proposed site will have a 10 
ft. setback, per the site plans. 

 

9-5B-2: NOISE, ODOR, AND VIBRATION PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 

Because the site is adjacent to residential uses, delivery times are limited to 
between 7:00am and 7:00pm. 

No obnoxious odors or fumes shall be emitted that are perceptible without 
instruments by a reasonable person at the property line of the site. 

 

9-5B-3: PROPERTY AND UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS: 

Installation of new drive approaches and street lights on Follett Street and Cinnamon 
Drive shall be required to be installed at the developer’s expense.  An encroachment 
permit shall be obtained prior to commencement of work. 

 

9-5B-4: OUTDOOR LIGHTING: 

All on-site outdoor lighting shall be recessed and/or constructed with full downward 
shielding in order to reduce light and glare impacts on trespass to adjoining 
properties and public rights of way. Each fixture shall be directed downward and 
away from adjoining properties and public rights of way, so that no light fixture 
directly illuminates an area outside of the project site. 

Maximum lighting height is 18 feet if the light pole is less than 10 feet from a 
property line and 24 feet if it is more than 10 feet from a property line. 

Outdoor lighting shall utilize energy efficient fixtures and lamps, such as, LED, high 
pressure sodium, metal halide, low pressure sodium, hard wired compact 
fluorescent, or other lighting technology that is of equal or greater efficiency. All new 
outdoor lighting fixtures shall be energy efficient with a rated average bulb life of not 
less than ten thousand (10,000) hours. 

Architectural features may be illuminated by up lighting, provided that the lamps are 
low intensity to produce a subtle lighting effect and no glare or light trespass is 
produced. Wherever feasible, solar powered fixtures should be used.   

 

9-5F-5: STANDARDS FOR PERMANENT ONSITE SIGNS: 

All signage shall meet the requirements of Chapter 9-5F of the Zoning Ordinance. 
Signage shall not be placed so as to impair traffic line of site.  The following signage 
is the maximum allowed: 

 One new monument sign is allowed.  It can be on either side of a drive approach.  
The maximum height is 4 feet.  The maximum total sign face size is 50 square 
feet. 



“In	God	We	Trust”	 Page	6	
 

 A maximum 100 square feet of building signage is allowed.  The total amount 
can be divided into multiple signs.  City design standards must be met. 

 

9-5G-2: ELIGIBILITY FOR DENSITY BONUS AND INCENTIVES AND 
CONCESSIONS: 

  A senior citizen housing development. (9-5G-2-3) is eligible for a 20% density 
bonus. 

 

Recommended Conditions of Conditional Use Permit 
 
Staff recommends that the approval be conditioned upon the following: 
 

1. The project shall be developed as per proposed Site Plan, Landscape Master 
Plan, Site Electrical Plan and Site Photometric (lighting) Plan. Any deviation from 
the approved plans shall require an amendment to the prior approvals or 
approval of a new permit as determined by the City. 

 
2. An encroachment permit shall be obtained prior to commencement of work in a 

public right of way. 
 

3. Delivery times shall be limited to between 7:00am and 7:00pm. 
 

 
4. No on-street parking shall be allowed on Follett Street. 
 
5. Trash enclosures shall be designed to accommodate refuse and recycling bins.  

The trash enclosure shall also include a roof structure and enclosed by a finished 
block wall. 
 

6. The existing 8’’ wide brick stamping behind the curb shall remain consistent with 
Phase I stamping.    
 

7. The project shall connect to existing sewer and water lines. Sewer and water 
services shall be installed per plans approved by the City Engineer. 

 
8. Apartment unit identification shall be appropriately sized and located on buildings 

as directed by police and fire departments.  Fire hydrant and fire department 
connection locations shall be located according to Fire Department 
recommendation. 

 
9. Trees shall be planted in the parkway between the curb and sidewalk with a 

spacing of approximately 40’ on center using trees from the City Street Tree list.  
Groundcover shall also be planted in the parkway. 

 



“In	God	We	Trust”	 Page	7	
 

10. The proposed grasses shall be drought tolerant grass. 
 

11. Where the final grade difference between the project site and adjacent properties 
to the east is more than one foot, a block retaining wall shall be installed at least 
to the height of the grade of the higher property. 

 
12. New 6’ vinyl fencing, similar in style to the Phase I fencing shall be installed 

along the easterly project boundary.  It may be installed on top of any required 
retaining wall. 

 
13. A separate sign application and administrative approval process will be required 

before ordering or installing any signage or lease up signage and flags so that it 
is in conformity with the city’s sign ordinance. 
 

14. The developer shall comply with the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control 
District (SJVAPCD) standards, and the City of Lemoore dust control 
requirements.  The project will be required to meet the 9510 Rule (Indirect 
Source Review) and submit a construction notification to the district for the 
project and that compliance with the Districts Regulation VIII (fugitive dust) Rules 
will be monitored. 

 
15. Outdoor lighting shall utilize energy efficient fixtures and lamps, such as LED, 

high pressure sodium, metal halide, low pressure sodium, hard wired compact 
fluorescent, or other lighting technology that is of equal or greater efficiency. All 
new outdoor lighting fixtures shall be energy efficient with a rated average bulb 
life of not less than ten thousand (10,000) hours. 

 
16. Architectural features may be illuminated by up lighting, provided that the lamps 

are low intensity to produce a subtle lighting effect and no glare or light trespass 
is produced. Wherever feasible, solar powered fixtures should be used. 
 

17. Upon completion of any infrastructure improvements and their acceptance by the 
city, the developer’s engineer shall prepare drawings of as built improvements 
and shall submit to the city one reproducible and three blue line copies for the 
city’s records in addition to a digital copy for incorporation into the City’s GIS 
System. 
 

18. If not exercised within two years from the date of approval, this Conditional Use 
Permit shall expire and become void, except where an extension of time has 
been approved in compliance with the Zoning Ordinance. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



“In	God	We	Trust”	 Page	8	
 

Attachments 
 

 Aerial Photo of Site 
 

 Draft Resolution for Approval 
 

 Development Package containing Site Plan, Conceptual Landscape Plans, Floor 
Plans, Elevation Plans, Color and Materials Palette, and Lighting Photometric 
Plan 
 



“In	God	We	Trust”	 Page	9	
 

 

 

Aerial Photo of Site 
Exhibit 

1 



“In God We Trust” 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2014-04 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE 
APPROVING MAJOR SITE PLAN REVIEW NO. 2014-02 AND 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. 2014-03 
TO ALLOW A 28-UNIT SENIOR AFFORDABLE APARTMENT COMPLEX 

LOCATED ON THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF CINNAMON DRIVE AND FOLLETT STREET 
 
At a Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of Lemoore duly called and held 
on August 11, 2014, at 7:00 p.m. on said day, it was moved by Commission Member 
______________, seconded by Commission Member ____________ and carried that the 
following Resolution be adopted: 
 

WHEREAS, Pacific West Communities, Inc., represented by Tim Sciacqua, has 
requested a conditional use permit to allow a 28-unit Senior Affordable Apartment Complex 
located on the southeast corner of Cinnamon Drive and Follett Street; and 
 

WHEREAS, the site is currently vacant; and 
 

WHEREAS, the zoning on the parcel is RLMD (Low/Medium Density Residential); and 
 

WHEREAS, the project is categorically exempt from California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) requirements per the new small structures exemption in Section 15303 of the CEQA 
Guidelines. 
 

WHEREAS, the Lemoore Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing at 
their August 11, 2014, Meeting. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of 
Lemoore hereby makes the following findings regarding the proposed conditional use permit: 

 
1.  The proposed use is consistent with the General Plan, any applicable specific plans, 

and all applicable provisions of this title.  The project is within the allowed density. 
 
2.  The establishment, maintenance, or operation of the use applied for will not, under 

the circumstances of the particular case (location, size, design, and operating 
characteristics), be detrimental to the health, safety, peace, morals, comfort, or 
general welfare of persons residing or working in the neighborhood of such use or to 
the general welfare of the city.  The use is compatible with the zone and existing 
uses in the vicinity. 

 
3.  The site of the proposed use is physically suitable for the type, density, and intensity 

of the use and related structures being proposed. Given the proposed plans, access 
to and from the site is suitable for the intensity of traffic.  Follett Street and Cinnamon 
Drive are classified as collector streets under the City of Lemoore’s General Plan, 
and will provide connection between the proposed site for higher density apartments, 
downtown, and other parts of the city. 

 
 
 



“In God We Trust” 
 

4.  The project will not be contrary to the specific intent clauses, development regulations 
or performance standards established for the zoning district in which it is located. 
The proposed use and related structures are compatible with other land uses, 
transportation, and service facilities in the vicinity.  Due to the existing first phase of 
the Cinnamon Villas, residents of the second phase will have access to the adjacent 
phase, with aligned accesses to both housing complexes.  Residents will be eligible 
for use of the amenities provided by the existing first phase of the existing Cinnamon 
Villas. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of Lemoore approves 
Major Site Plan Review No. 2014-02 and Conditional Use Permit No. 2014-03, subject to the 
following conditions:  
 

1. The project shall be developed as per proposed Site Plan, Landscape Master Plan, Site 
Electrical Plan and Site Photometric (lighting) Plan. Any deviation from the approved 
plans shall require an amendment to the prior approvals or approval of a new permit as 
determined by the City. 

 
2. An encroachment permit shall be obtained prior to commencement of work in a public 

right of way. 
 

3. Delivery times shall be limited to between 7:00am and 7:00pm. 
 

4. No on-street parking shall be allowed on Follett Street. 
 
5. Trash enclosures shall be designed to accommodate refuse and recycling bins.  The 

trash enclosure shall also include a roof structure and enclosed by a finished block wall. 
 

6. The existing 8’’ wide brick stamping behind the curb shall remain consistent with Phase I 
stamping.    
 

7. The project shall connect to existing sewer and water lines. Sewer and water services 
shall be installed per plans approved by the City Engineer. 

 
8. Apartment unit identification shall be appropriately sized and located on buildings as 

directed by police and fire departments.  Fire hydrant and fire department connection 
locations shall be located according to Fire Department recommendation. 

 
9. Trees shall be planted in the parkway between the curb and sidewalk with a spacing of 

approximately 40’ on center using trees from the City Street Tree list.  Groundcover shall 
also be planted in the parkway. 

 
10. The proposed grasses shall be drought tolerant grass. 

 
11. Where the final grade difference between the project site and adjacent properties to the 

east is more than one foot, a block retaining wall shall be installed at least to the height 
of the grade of the higher property. 

 
12. New 6’ vinyl fencing, similar in style to the Phase I fencing shall be installed along the 

easterly project boundary.  It may be installed on top of any required retaining wall. 



“In God We Trust” 
 

 
13. A separate sign application and administrative approval process will be required before 

ordering or installing any signage or lease up signage and flags so that it is in conformity 
with the city’s sign ordinance. 
 

14. The developer shall comply with the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District 
(SJVAPCD) standards, and the City of Lemoore dust control requirements.  The project 
will be required to meet the 9510 Rule (Indirect Source Review) and submit a 
construction notification to the district for the project and that compliance with the 
Districts Regulation VIII (fugitive dust) Rules will be monitored. 

 
15. Outdoor lighting shall utilize energy efficient fixtures and lamps, such as LED, high 

pressure sodium, metal halide, low pressure sodium, hard wired compact fluorescent, or 
other lighting technology that is of equal or greater efficiency. All new outdoor lighting 
fixtures shall be energy efficient with a rated average bulb life of not less than ten 
thousand (10,000) hours. 

 
16. Architectural features may be illuminated by up lighting, provided that the lamps are low 

intensity to produce a subtle lighting effect and no glare or light trespass is produced. 
Wherever feasible, solar powered fixtures should be used. 
 

17. Upon completion of any infrastructure improvements and their acceptance by the City, 
the developer’s engineer shall prepare drawings of as built improvements and shall 
submit to the city one reproducible and three blue line copies for the city’s records in 
addition to a digital copy for incorporation into the City’s GIS System. 
 

18. If not exercised within two years from the date of approval, this Conditional Use Permit 
shall expire and become void, except where an extension of time has been approved in 
compliance with the Zoning Ordinance. 

 
Passed and adopted at a Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of Lemoore 
held on August 11, 2014, by the following votes: 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAINING: 
ABSENT: 

APPROVED: 
 
 

      
Jeff Garcia, Chairperson 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Kristie Baley, Commission Secretary 








































	8-11-14  PC Agenda
	Agenda Back
	Item 3 - Minutes 7-28-14
	Lemoore Staff Report-Phase 2 Cinnamon Villas revised
	Attachment
	1
	3
	4
	5
	6
	7


